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17.–The Prince’s Tower
As we continue our ascent to the acropolis, along the 

wooden walkway, we see on our left the beach of Plaka 

at Drepano, spreading as far as the ‘Nisi’ peninsula on 

the opposite side. Accordingto Zangger, in the sixth 

millennium BC the coastline extended some 700 m 

further north. 

From this point and as far as the ‘Prince’s Tower’, the 

path was laid out inside the old Italian trench bunker. 

On the left, about 70 m beyond the viewing point, a 

square tower of the Hellenistic fortification wall stands 

for a height of four courses. It is built in the polygonal 

system, of local grey limestone. In contrast to the east 

side of the acropolis, which is easily accessible, the 

rocky and precipitous west slope of the hill had no need 

of robust constructions. Here the defensive walls are 

low and the towers reinforcing them are small. The 

Swedes named the tower in front of us as the ‘Prince’s 

Tower’ because Prince Gustaf had participated in its 

excavation. On its north side, the ‘wellhead’ of yet 

another cistern is covered by a glass shelter. 

18.–Pressing installation
We reach the lowest point of the organized route, 

where we encounter the ruins of a rectangular room 

measuring 3.5x5.5 m. In order to construct it, the 

bedrock has been levelled and was actually part of its 

floor and walls. Where necessary, the floor was filled in 

with flat stones and coated with plaster. At about the 

centre of the room a raised circular surface of bedrock 

has been left, with a rectangular cutting. The floor of 

the room slopes down towards two rock-cut tanks, 

57 cm and 50 cm deep, the first close to the east wall 

and the second in the southeast corner of the room. 

Their walls were completed by small fragments of tiles 

and plaster. Fragments of large unpainted vases were 

recovered from the bottom of the tanks. 

The room is dated to Hellenistic and Roman times. 

It functioned as a pressing installation for processing 

agricultural products. In all probability a wooden 

mechanism for pressing the fruit was affixed to the 

base at the centre of the room. The liquid released 

drained down the sloping floor into the two tanks. 

19.–Terrace of a polygonal fortification wall
A few steps down to the west of the pressing 

installation is the so-called ‘Terrace of the polygonal 

wall’, a large – by the standards of the acropolis of Asine 

– flat area, thus named after the well-built polygonal 

fortification wall of Hellenistic times. This was built 

34	 Double vase. 1700-1600 BC. Archaeological 
Museum of Nafplion. 

35	 Iron soles. 500-475 BC. Archaeological 
Museum of Nafplion. 

36	 View of the Prince's Tower during the 
Swedish excavations.

37	 View of the beach of Plaka at Drepano 
from Asini. In the background, the 'Nisi' 
peninsula.

38	 Aerial view of the pressing installation.
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Ancient Asine after the completion of the first Swedish                                                                    excavations. View from the Barbouna Hill.
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Ancient Asine after the completion of the first Swedish                                                                    excavations. View from the Barbouna Hill.
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between two crags in order to retain the fill that 

forms this man made terrace. On the same side a high 

metal railing has been placed, to protect visitors. The 

Hellenistic wall is visible only from the road between 

Kastraki and Tolo. In all likelihood it replaced a pre-

existing retaining construction, as remains dating from 

the Early Helladic and the Middle Helladic period have 

been found on the terrace. 

20.–Early Helladic house
Preserved on the south east side of the terrace is the 

outline of a small room, which belonged to a larger 

Early Helladic house. In Middle Helladic times, two cist 

graves had been opened in the floor of this house. 

Seal impression
The clay seal impression (fig. 42) was found together 

with sherds of Early Helladic pottery in the area of 

the ‘Terrace of the polygonal wall’. It preserves two 

intact sealings and two parts of an impression with the 

representation of a spider surrounded by a meander 

pattern. The motif attests contacts between Asine and 

Crete. Seals of assorted materials and seal impressions 

have come to light at various points in the area of the 

Early Helladic settlement, pointing to the existence at 

Asine too of a system of controlling the making, storing 

and trading of products. 

21.–Italian pillbox
On the south side of the terrace, one more pillbox 

was built during the Italian Occupation. Incorporated 

in the rocky environment, the building secured full 

surveillance of the Argolic Gulf. It has a pebbled floor 

and traces of incised Italian inscriptions (graffiti) are 

still visible. 

Written on the right was the name of the regiment 

that encamped at Asine and on the left the date 

on which the pillbox was built, 9 March 1942. 

Characteristic is the accompanying of this date with 

that in the Fascist system of reckoning time, according 

to which 1942 is the year ΧΧ (20), with starting point 

the year of Mussolini’s march on Rome. Trenches 

running around the hill and connecting various military 

installations ended at the pillbox. 

22.–Pressinginstallation
Before we begin our descent from the west side of 

the acropolis, we shall make a detour from the main 

route, in order to visit one more pressing installation 

of Hellenistic times. Just beyond the viewing point 

40	 View of the fortification from the sea.

41	 The Early Helladic house, as it is today.

42	 Clay seal impression. 3rd millennium BC. 
Archaeological Museum of Nafplion.

43	 The Italian pillbox, as it is today.

44	 The pressing installation at the time of the 
Swedish excavations.
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with the semi-circular bench, a dirt path, of steep 

gradient at the start, leads southeast to the pressing 

installation, about 70 m away. 

When it was discovered, it comprised consecutive 

spacesat different levels on the hillslope, extending for 

a length of over 13 m. 

Today, the space where the pressing process 

took place can be seen on the uppermost level. The 

arrangement of the permanent installations – the 

pressing surface, the tank and the two rectangular 

mortises in which the pressing mechanism will have 

been inserted – resembles that of the press we passed 

before the staircase up to the acropolis.The floor of the 

space consisted of small pieces of tiles, assempled and 

coated with plaster. The gradient of the floor led the 

liquid into the small quadrilateral basin, 55 cm deep, 

through two holes opened in its raised rim. The part 

with the mortices for fixing the pressing mechanism is 

in a straight line with the pressing surface, 20 cm lower 

than the floor of the room. The complex was entered 

from the south, where a stone threshold (1.35 m long) 

has been found, with two cuttings at its ends, for 

affixing the axes of the door. 

The existence of pressing installations on the 

acropolis of Asine, in a rocky area difficult of access,to 

which the bringing of the agricultural products will 

have demanded much time and effort, is puzzling to 

say the least. According to B. Wells, in Hellenistic times 

Asine was a walled village in which there could have 

been some cultivation intra muros. In this case, the 

fortification walls will have functioned also as retaining 

walls to hold back the earth for growing olive trees, 

vines and cereals.The many water cisterns found in the 

city will have played their role in tending the crops. 

ΤΟLΌ
We return from the press to the main path, in order to 

complete our tour around the acropolis. On the way 

down we take the path laid by the Italians, in some 

places paved and in others stepped, the greater part 

of which has been restored. From this side we have 

a superb view of the sheltered Bay of Tolo, which is 

closed to the west by the islet of Romvi and behind that 

Daskaleio. Visible inside the harbour is rocky Koronisi. 

It was in the Bay of Tolo that the fleet of Admiral 

Morosini mustered in 1686, before embarking on the 

campaign to recapture Nafplion (Napoli di Romania) 

from the Ottomans. After the Venetians’ departure, the 

region reverted again into Ottoman hands, in which 

it remained until the Greek War of Independence. 

43
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With the founding of the Greek State, the deserted 

place was settled by Cretans, refugees of the Cretan 

Uprising, after the decrees of Ioannis Kapodistrias and 

the Regency, in 1831 and 1834 respectively. At that 

time the village was named Minoa, but was renamed 

officially as Tolo in 1916. The barren land led the 

inhabitants to turn to the sea as a source of livelihood. 

With the growth of tourism, the small fishing village 

has developed into a vacation venue.  

23.–Fortification walls 
After completing the tour intra muros of Asine and 

exiting the ancient gate of the city, visitors can follow 

the road to the east and then head to the south to 

reach Plaka beach. From there they can behold the 

mighty Hellenistic fortification, the entrance to the 

acropolis, and admire the impressive east tower. At 

the same time, they can easily make out the different 

constructional phases of the fortification wall. 

Just beyond the gate and turning to gaze high on 

the rock, at the point where the Italian building with 

the small exhibition space is located, the observant 

visitor will ascertain that there are three different 

building phases in the wall. In the lower part the large 

courses in the polygonal system of masonry were built 

in the Hellenistic period and belong to the first phase. 

During the Second Period of Venetian Rule the height 

of the wall was increased by adding small stones, tiles 

and mortar. In this phase the wall was crowned with 

crenellations. In the time of the Occupation, when the 

Italian building was erected, the height of the wall was 

increased further. For the effective concealment of the 

construction, the Italians imitated the masonry and 

the crenellations of the Venetian phase.

The road continues to skirt the rock of Asine, passing 

outside the walls. On the east side, outstanding is 

the robust retaining wall of the staircase which led to 

the gate of the acropolis. It is built of large limestone 

blocks in the polygonal system. The lowest part of 

the staircase has not survived. In this area the first 

excavators refer to the existence of a Roman thermae 

with hypocausts, but give no further information. 

The bathhouse was destroyed at some moment after 

it was revealed, perhaps when the road was opened, 

replacing an earlier narrow path. 

In front of the staircase looms the large east tower 

of the wall. Today the tower stands to a height of 9.5 

m, which must be quite close to its initial one, as the 

existence of only one further course is proposed. At its 

base, the tower projects 5.5 m and 7 m from the face 

45  View of Tolo in the 1920s.

46  The retaining wall of the staircase leading  
to the acropolis during the excavations.
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of the walls, to the north and south respectively, while 

its east side is 10.3 m long. It comprises 14 courses of 

polygonal blocks.The two lowest courses are in stepped 

arrangement. Above these the corners of the tower 

have been cut diagonally and incised on the salient 

angles is a vertical taenia. This formation is followed on 

eight successive courses. The stepped arrangement of 

the lower courses contributes to the static adequacy 

of the tower, in the interior of which is a large volume 

of earth. The diagonal formation of the points where 

the sides of the tower join is considered to have been 

intended for the effective confrontation of battering 

rams, as possible damage to the cornerstones leads 

to more rapid collapse of the whole construction. 

The carving of the vertical taeniae helped the masons 

during the building works. 

The fortification walls of Asine were built in the late 

fourth century BC. Several scholars have suggested 

that their construction was part of an ambitious 

project of Demetrios Poliorketes, son of Alexander 

the Great’s general Antigonos Monophthalmos, who 

dominated the Aegean in the years around 300 BC. 

The dirt road leads to the beach at Plaka, completing 

our tour of ancient Asine. Before us spreads the 

tranquil Gulf of Argos with the uninhabited islets of 

Plateia and Ypsili. This was the horizon on which the 

inhabitants of Asine looked out, sometimes waiting 

to see the merchant ships with their cargoes of goods 

appear, and sometimes awaiting the arrival of would-

be conquerors, in the hope that their precipitous rock 

would protect them.

48

47

47	 View of the acropolis fortification 
wall in the area of the Italian building. 
One can see the three different 
building phases of the wall.

48	 View of the retaining wall of the 
staircase which led to the acropolis.

* Photographs nos 3, 4, 5, 6, 13, 15, 19, 20, 23, 26, 32, 

33, 36, 39, 44, 45, 46 are from the Archive of the Swedish 

Institute at Athens.

Photographs nos 2, 7, 8, 9, 10, 14, 21, 22, 24, 27, 29, 

31, 34, 35, 38, 40, 42 and the plan on p. 122 are from the 

Archive of the Ephorate of Antiquities of Argolida / Ministry 

of Culture and Sports - Archaeological Receipts Fund.
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